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                          BEFORE THE ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL 
                           PROTECTION AGENCY BUREAU OF AIR 
 
                  In the Matter of:               ) 
                                                  ) No. 06080059 
                                                  ) 
                  WIGHT LIGHTNING ACQUISITION     ) 
                  1, LLC FOR AN ETHANOL PLANT     ) 
                  IN ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS.          ) 
 
                           REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and testimony 
 
                  taken at the hearing of the above-entitled 
 
                  matter by the Illinois Environmental Protection 
 
                  Agency, at Auburn High School, 5110 Auburn 
 
                  Street, Rockford, Illinois, on the 1st day of 
 
                  May, A.D. 2007, at the hour of 7:00 p.m. 
 
                       PRESENT: 
 
                           MS. CRYSTAL MYERS-WILKINS, Hearing 
                               Officer; 
 
                           MR. MINESH PATEL, Engineer, Bureau of 
                               Air; 
 
                           MR. CHRIS ROMAINE, Manager, Air Permit 
                               Section Construction Unit; 
 
                           MR. KEN PAGE, Environmental Justice 
                               Officer Bureau of Air; 
 
                           MR. KURT D. NEIBERGALL, Manager, Office 
                               of Community Relations; 
 
                           MR. BRAD FROST, Community Relations 
                               Coordinator; 
 
                           MR. JAY TIMM, Community Relations 
                               Coordinator; 
 
                           MR. RICHARD BRECKENRIDGE, Agricultural 
                               Adviser. 
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            1          ALSO PRESENT: 
 
            2              MS. JESSICA HART, Project Manager, 
                               Wight Lightning; 
            3 
                           MR. JOHN GOEBEL, VP of Acquisitions, 
            4                  Wight Lightning; 
 
            5              MR. TODD POTAS, Environmental 
                               Consultant for Wight Lightning; 
            6 
                           MR. DAN BUTLER, Project Engineer for 
            7                  Wight Lightning. 
                  ______________________________________________ 
            8 
 
            9              MS. MYERS-WILKINS:  Good evening, 
 
           10     everyone.  Welcome to the Wight Lightning public 
 
           11     hearing.  This hearing concerns the issuance of 
 
           12     a construction permit to be issued to Wight 
 
           13     Lightning.  The time now is approximately 
 
           14     7:22 p.m. on Tuesday, May 1, 2007.  My name is 
 
           15     Crystal Myers-Wilkins.  I'm an attorney with the 
 
           16     Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, and I 
 
           17     am the hearing officer this evening presiding 
 
           18     over this hearing. 
 
           19                  I want to begin by thinking 
 
           20     everyone for coming out and taking part in these 
 
           21     proceedings as the Illinois Environmental 
 
           22     Protection Agency recognizes that public 
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            1     hearings are a crucial part of the permit review 



 
            2     and public awareness process. 
 
            3                  As the hearing officer, my purpose 
 
            4     is to preside over the procedural aspects of the 
 
            5     hearing.  It's not my job to answer questions or 
 
            6     make decisions regarding the draft construction 
 
            7     permit that we are here to discuss and comment 
 
            8     on today. 
 
            9                  This is a public hearing before the 
 
           10     Illinois EPA Bureau of Air in the matter of 
 
           11     Wight Lightning Acquisition 1, LLC, 1901 North 
 
           12     Roselle Road, Suite 100, Schaumburg, Illinois 
 
           13     60195.  Wight Lightning has submitted an 
 
           14     application to the Illinois EPA Division of Air 
 
           15     Pollution Control for a permit to construct an 
 
           16     ethanol plant to be located at 1951 South 
 
           17     Meridian in Rockford.  The plant would be 
 
           18     designed to have a nominal capacity of 116 
 
           19     million gallons per year of denatured ethanol. 
 
           20                  The Illinois EPA has made a 
 
           21     preliminary determination to issue a permit for 
 
           22     the project and has prepared a draft permit for 
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            1     review.  The Illinois EPA is holding a public 
 
            2     comment hearing and this hearing is to accept 
 
            3     comments from the public on the proposed 
 



            4     issuance of the permit for this project. 
 
            5                  This public hearing is being held 
 
            6     under the provisions of the Illinois EPA 
 
            7     procedures for permit and closure plans hearings 
 
            8     which can be found at 35 Illinois Administrative 
 
            9     Code part 166 subpart A. 
 
           10                  Copies of these procedures can be 
 
           11     obtained from me upon request, or they can be 
 
           12     accessed on the Web site of the Illinois 
 
           13     Pollution Control Board at www.ipcb.state.il.us. 
 
           14                  A public hearing means that this is 
 
           15     strictly an informational hearing.  It's an 
 
           16     opportunity for the Illinois EPA to provide you 
 
           17     with information concerning the draft permit and 
 
           18     it's also an opportunity for you to provide 
 
           19     information to the Illinois EPA concerning that 
 
           20     same permit. 
 
           21                  The hearing will proceed as 
 
           22     follows:  The Illinois EPA staff members will 
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            1     introduce themselves and identify their 
 
            2     positions at the agency.  Then employees of 
 
            3     Wight Lightning will introduce themselves and 
 
            4     provide a brief overview of the project to be 
 
            5     permitted. 
 
            6                  Following this overview, the public 



 
            7     will be allowed to ask questions or provide 
 
            8     comments.  You are not required to verbalize 
 
            9     your comments.  Written comments are given the 
 
           10     same consideration and may be submitted to the 
 
           11     agency at any time within the public comment 
 
           12     period, which ends at midnight on May 31, 2007. 
 
           13     Although written comments will continue to be 
 
           14     accepted through this date, tonight is the only 
 
           15     time that oral comments will be accepted. 
 
           16                  Any person who wants to make oral 
 
           17     comments may do so as long as the statements are 
 
           18     relevant to the issues surrounding the draft 
 
           19     construction permit that is the focus of the 
 
           20     hearing and you have indicated on your 
 
           21     registration card that you would like to make a 
 
           22     comment.  If you have lengthy comments or 
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            1     questions, it might be helpful to submit them to 
 
            2     me in writing before the close of the comment 
 
            3     period.  I will ensure that they are included in 
 
            4     the hearing as exhibits. 
 
            5                  Please keep your comments and 
 
            6     questions relevant to the Bureau of Air Draft 
 
            7     Construction Permit.  If your comments fall 
 
            8     outside the scope of this hearing, I may ask you 
 



            9     to proceed to another issue.  All speakers have 
 
           10     the option of directing questions to the 
 
           11     Illinois EPA panel, or they can just make 
 
           12     general comments, or you can do both. 
 
           13                  Wight Lightning employees are also 
 
           14     free to answer questions if they are willing to 
 
           15     do so, but I am not in a position to require a 
 
           16     response from Wight Lightning.  The panel 
 
           17     members will make every attempt to answer the 
 
           18     questions presented, but I will not permit the 
 
           19     speakers to argue, cross examine, or engage in a 
 
           20     prolonged dialogue with the panel. 
 
           21                  For the purpose of allowing 
 
           22     everyone to have a chance to comment, I am 
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            1     asking that groups, organizations and 
 
            2     associations, keep their questions and comments 
 
            3     not so lengthy.  Right now I'm not going to 
 
            4     necessarily require, I guess, or put a time 
 
            5     limit, just because I think that the group is 
 
            6     small enough that we can possibly hear all 
 
            7     comments without a time limit but if, in fact, a 
 
            8     comment gets kind of lengthy, I may ask you to 
 
            9     wrap up your comment and if there's time at the 
 
           10     end of the hearing, we will allow those who feel 
 
           11     that they have additional comments or did not 



 
           12     complete their comments to come up and continue. 
 
           13                  I would like to avoid unnecessary 
 
           14     repetition.  So if any speaker before you has 
 
           15     already presented the same material that is 
 
           16     contained in your written or oral comments, 
 
           17     please skip over those issues when you speak. 
 
           18     Remember, all written comments, whether or not 
 
           19     you say them out loud, will become a part of the 
 
           20     official hearing record and will be considered. 
 
           21                  After everyone has had an 
 
           22     opportunity to speak, and provided the time 
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            1     permits, others may come back up and continue or 
 
            2     provide additional comments or thoughts.  There 
 
            3     are some registration cards that were on the 
 
            4     table.  If you intend to speak this evening, you 
 
            5     need to fill those comment cards out.  So if 
 
            6     there's anyone who did not receive a comment 
 
            7     card that would like to make a comment this 
 
            8     evening, please see Brad Frost in the back of 
 
            9     the room and he can help you get a comment card 
 
           10     filled out. 
 
           11                  Anyone who fills out one of the 
 
           12     comment cards will also receive a letter 
 
           13     announcing the Illinois EPA's decision.  That 
 



           14     letter will also direct you to the Web site 
 
           15     where you can retrieve all the details, 
 
           16     including the agency's Responsiveness Summary. 
 
           17                  The agency's Responsiveness Summary 
 
           18     will attempt to answer all the relevant 
 
           19     questions raised at this hearing or submitted to 
 
           20     me prior to the close of the comment period. 
 
           21     Responsiveness Summary, the transcript, and the 
 
           22     final permit will all be available online.  If 
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            1     you would like this Web site, please, again, see 
 
            2     Brad Frost. 
 
            3                  The written record in this matter 
 
            4     will close on May 31, 2007, therefore, I will 
 
            5     accept all written comments as long as they are 
 
            6     postmarked by midnight, May 31, 2007.  During 
 
            7     the comment period, all relevant comments, 
 
            8     documents or data, will also be placed into the 
 
            9     hearing record as exhibits.  Please send all 
 
           10     written documents or data to my attention at the 
 
           11     following address:  Crystal Myers-Wilkins, 
 
           12     Hearing Officer, Illinois Environmental 
 
           13     Protection Agency, 1021 North Grand Avenue East, 
 
           14     P.O. Box 19276, Springfield, Illinois 62794. 
 
           15     And my phone number is 217-782-5544.  This 
 
           16     address was also listed on the public notice for 



 
           17     the hearing. 
 
           18                  Anyone wishing to make comments or 
 
           19     ask questions tonight, please be mindful of the 
 
           20     court reporter, who is making a verbatim record 
 
           21     of this proceeding for the purpose of creating 
 
           22     an administrative record.  For her benefit, 
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            1     please keep the general background noise level 
 
            2     in this room to a minimum so that she can hear 
 
            3     and properly record everything said and let's 
 
            4     show respect for the individual who has the 
 
            5     floor.  Also, please keep in mind that any 
 
            6     comments from those other than the person who 
 
            7     has the microphone will not be recorded by the 
 
            8     court reporter and will simply be a disruption 
 
            9     of this process.  This rule applies not only 
 
           10     when audience members are speaking, but also 
 
           11     when the panel from the Illinois EPA are 
 
           12     speaking.  When it is your turn to speak, please 
 
           13     speak clearly and slowly into the microphone so 
 
           14     the court reporter can understand what you are 
 
           15     saying.  Additionally, when you begin to speak, 
 
           16     state your name, and if applicable, any 
 
           17     governmental body, organization or association 
 
           18     that you represent.  For the benefit of the 
 



           19     court reporter, I ask that you spell your last 
 
           20     name.  People who have requested to speak will 
 
           21     be called upon in the order in which they 
 
           22     registered to make a comment. 
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            1                  Before Wight Lightning begins with 
 
            2     an overview of the project, I would like to 
 
            3     record a number of preliminary documents into 
 
            4     the official record as exhibits. 
 
            5                  Exhibit No. 1 is a copy of the 
 
            6     notice of the public hearing. 
 
            7                  Exhibit No. 2 is a copy of Wight 
 
            8     Lightning's draft construction permit. 
 
            9                  Exhibit No. 3, a copy of the 
 
           10     project summary. 
 
           11                  Exhibit No. 4, a copy of a letter 
 
           12     addressed to the hearing officer from the 
 
           13     Winnebago County Responsible Community 
 
           14     Development Corporation, dated April 21, 2007. 
 
           15                  Exhibit No. 5, a copy of a letter 
 
           16     to Ken Page from the Winnebago County 
 
           17     Responsible Community Development Corporation, 
 
           18     dated March 16, 2007.  Attached to this letter 
 
           19     is a complaint captioned Winnebago County 
 
           20     Responsible Committee Development Corporation 
 
           21     versus Winnebago County Ethanol Plant Wight 



 
           22     Lightning. 
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            1                  Okay.  At this point, we will go 
 
            2     ahead and have the panel introduce themselves 
 
            3     and other Illinois EPA employees who are present 
 
            4     to introduce themselves. 
 
            5              MR. ROMAINE:  Good evening.  My name is 
 
            6     Chris Romaine.  I'm manager of the Construction 
 
            7     Unit in the Air Permit Section. 
 
            8              MR. PATEL:  My name is Minesh Patel. 
 
            9     I'm permit engineer with the Bureau of Air. 
 
           10              MR. PAGE:  My name is Ken Page.  I'm 
 
           11     the Environmental Justice Officer Illinois EPA. 
 
           12              MR. FROST:  My name is Brad Frost.  I'm 
 
           13     in the Office of Community Relations with the 
 
           14     Illinois EPA. 
 
           15              MR. TIMM:  Jay Timm, community 
 
           16     relations with the Illinois EPA. 
 
           17              MR. NEIBERGALL:  My name is Kurt 
 
           18     Neibergall, and I'm manager of the Office of 
 
           19     Community Relations Associate Director's Office. 
 
           20              MR. BRECKENRIDGE:  My name is Ted 
 
           21     Breckenridge, and I'm the agricultural adviser 
 
           22     for the agency. 
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            1              MS. MYERS-WILKINS:  I think it would be 
 
            2     helpful if we had Wight Lightning to introduce 
 
            3     themselves at this point in time.  You can 
 
            4     either stand up. 
 
            5              MS. HART:  My name is Jessica Hart. 
 
            6     I'm project manager for Wight Lightning 
 
            7     Acquisition.  I am also here with my associate, 
 
            8     John Goebel, who is VP of acquisitions here at 
 
            9     Wight Lightning. 
 
           10                  We also have Dan Butler, who is an 
 
           11     engineer that will be available to answer any 
 
           12     questions concerning water, and Todd Potas, who 
 
           13     is our environmental consultant at Natural 
 
           14     Resource Group to be able to discuss the air 
 
           15     concerns in regard to the ethanol plant, and he 
 
           16     would like to give our opening remarks. 
 
           17              MR. POTAS:  Good evening.  My name is 
 
           18     Todd Potas.  I'm a principal for our biofuels 
 
           19     group at Natural Resource Group.  We are an 
 
           20     environmental consultant company, and we are 
 
           21     working on behalf of the Wight Lightning Group 
 
           22     for this project. 
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            1                  I'm a registered professional 
 
            2     engineer in several states.  I have bachelor's 
 
            3     and master's degrees in chemical engineering.  I 
 
            4     have been involved in the environmental 
 
            5     permitting compliance and pollution control 
 
            6     associated with ethanol plants since 1992.  I 
 
            7     have worked on over 75 ethanol plants 
 
            8     nationwide, and currently there's 115 facilities 
 
            9     operating in the United States with several more 
 
           10     under planning and construction. 
 
           11                  The Wight Lightning Acquisition 1 
 
           12     facility is a 160 million gallon per year 
 
           13     denatured ethanol plant.  The facility is a dry 
 
           14     mill plant that will use corn for its primary 
 
           15     grain source.  The Wight project is similar to 
 
           16     several projects that have recently been 
 
           17     permitted and are currently under construction. 
 
           18     Facilities in Iowa, Michigan, California and 
 
           19     Wisconsin of a very similar design have recently 
 
           20     started operation or are currently under 
 
           21     construction.  The permit limits for all these 
 
           22     facilities are being complied with and have 
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            1     demonstrated compliance with their emission 
 
            2     testing. 
 



            3                  The emission controls engineered in 
 
            4     this facility will control any dust from the 
 
            5     corn handling and milling for fermentation.  The 
 
            6     ethanol emissions from the plant will be 
 
            7     controlled by water scrubbers to recover as much 
 
            8     ethanol as possible.  Once the ethanol is 
 
            9     distilled, there will be spent corn grain to dry 
 
           10     for animal feed.  The vents and exhaust from 
 
           11     distillation and drying will be controlled by a 
 
           12     regenerative thermal oxidizer or RTO.  The RTO 
 
           13     will combust any organic compounds to water 
 
           14     vapor and carbon dioxide exhaust.  The RTO has a 
 
           15     ceramic media to recover 95 percent of the heat 
 
           16     used to combust this dryer exhaust at 
 
           17     temperature.  This control prevents any odors 
 
           18     from being emitted from the facility.  The 
 
           19     facility will be a minor source of all types of 
 
           20     air emissions and will comply with the IEPA 
 
           21     permitting requirements that are in the draft 
 
           22     permit.  We have predicted the ambient 
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            1     concentrations from these emissions and have 
 
            2     found the emissions concentrations would be 
 
            3     below any thresholds of concern. 
 
            4                  With regard to noise, there have 
 
            5     been many noise surveys performed on similar 



 
            6     designed ethanol facilities showing noise levels 
 
            7     will be below 45 decimals at 2000 feet from the 
 
            8     process equipment.  This noise is projected to 
 
            9     blend in the existing background. 
 
           10                  I have a few clarifying points. 
 
           11     This facility will not have any anhydrous 
 
           12     ammonia.  That is an ammonia that is in the 
 
           13     gaseous form stored under pressure.  This 
 
           14     facility will use a 30 percent ammonia, 70 
 
           15     percent water solution. 
 
           16                  So just to clarify, this water 
 
           17     solution of ammonia could be quickly diluted if 
 
           18     there was a spill so that there would be minimal 
 
           19     vapors produced from this ammonious source.  And 
 
           20     we all know with that there's a solution of 
 
           21     ammonia and water.  So you could quickly dilute 
 
           22     that ammonia down and it would not be a hazard. 
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            1                  The ethanol industry has greatly 
 
            2     matured in recent years and has developed many 
 
            3     innovations to optimize environmental 
 
            4     performance and produce ethanol with higher 
 
            5     efficiency.  The 115 operating facilities have 
 
            6     provided a wealth of operating knowledge. 
 
            7                  These facilities have proven to be 
 



            8     a valuable community asset many times over 
 
            9     providing significant economic development 
 
           10     through added income to farmers, employees and 
 
           11     area businesses throughout the U.S. 
 
           12                  That concludes my comments.  If 
 
           13     anyone has any technical questions, I'd be happy 
 
           14     to answer them. 
 
           15              MS. MYERS-WILKINS:  Okay.  Let's begin 
 
           16     taking comments. 
 
           17                  Alderman Victory Bell. 
 
           18              MR. BELL:  Thank you very much.  My 
 
           19     name is Victory Bell.  I am alderman for the 5th 
 
           20     ward and I want to thank you for the opportunity 
 
           21     to make a few comments. 
 
           22                  And my comments basically are going 
 
 
 
                    KATHLEEN W. BONO,  CSR 630-834-7779 
 
 
 
                                                                18 
 
            1     to be questions because the people have called 
 
            2     me regarding the impact of the proposed ethanol 
 
            3     plant, and I have attended many meetings as it 
 
            4     relates to the proposed ethanol plant.  And I 
 
            5     feel at this time, that there are questions that 
 
            6     still need to be answered.  And I would 
 
            7     basically address my questions to the EPA 
 
            8     because you are the governmental body that has 
 
            9     the responsibility to ensure that citizens are 
 
           10     protected and R-1 residential areas are not 



 
           11     encroached upon in such a way that it is going 
 
           12     to be detrimental to those residents.  So I'm 
 
           13     going to make my questions as outlined. 
 
           14                  First of all, if we look at heavy 
 
           15     industry and zoning normally regulate industry 
 
           16     through certain zonings, IL, industrial, 
 
           17     commercial, heavy industry.  And the real 
 
           18     question with heavy industry is when you zone a 
 
           19     plot of land with heavy industry and if you 
 
           20     don't have certain restrictions on that zoning, 
 
           21     that anything really can go there.  So I'm 
 
           22     speaking basically in terms of zoning policy. 
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            1                  In heavy industry you can have 
 
            2     boundaries, you can have waste stations, you can 
 
            3     have manure compacting businesses and things of 
 
            4     that nature.  So heavy industry is something 
 
            5     that you just don't give a blanket zoning to and 
 
            6     that has been my question all along as an 
 
            7     alderman and it's been a question that some of 
 
            8     the citizens have raised. 
 
            9                  I don't come here this evening with 
 
           10     my concerns relative to heavy industry zoning 
 
           11     for the property located at 1250 West Meridian 
 
           12     Road and 915 West Kelly Road in Winnebago county 
 



           13     just to be making statements. 
 
           14                  My comments are not intended to 
 
           15     speak against any of the proposed business 
 
           16     people to build the ethanol plant, nor do I 
 
           17     speak against the Winnebago county board or 
 
           18     Winnebago county board chairman. 
 
           19                  I do come here this evening as an 
 
           20     elected official to raise questions on behalf of 
 
           21     my constituents.  When it speaks specifically 
 
           22     for the 5th ward, and the 5th ward is the oldest 
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            1     ward in the city of Rockford, and for many years 
 
            2     40, 45 years we have seen a decline in economic 
 
            3     development growth. 
 
            4                  I also come to speak on behalf of 
 
            5     Winnebago county residents near the proposed 
 
            6     ethanol plant who has called me and I have met 
 
            7     with and I come here to speak on behalf of the 
 
            8     citizens in the 13th ward because Alderman Linda 
 
            9     McNeely is not able to be with us; she has broke 
 
           10     her ankle so she can't be here. 
 
           11                  The citizens that I just spoke of 
 
           12     represent approximately 28,000 people.  They 
 
           13     have raised questions relative to what impact 
 
           14     the proposed ethanol plant will have on their 
 
           15     property.  It is my opinion that they deserve 



 
           16     answers to their question, and that is what I 
 
           17     appeal to the committee to ensure, to ensure 
 
           18     that these citizens, who have invested their 
 
           19     life's savings into their homes, who have 
 
           20     confidence in the west side and that is 
 
           21     something new and now they have questions and I 
 
           22     personally would like for EPA to really address 
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            1     those questions. 
 
            2                  We all recognize that there has to 
 
            3     be alternatives to fuel in America.  We realize 
 
            4     that the President of the United States is 
 
            5     pushing ethanol plants and there's going to be a 
 
            6     lot of money involved in there and there should 
 
            7     be and something should have been done a long 
 
            8     time ago.  The government of the state of 
 
            9     Illinois also is pushing ethanol plants. 
 
           10                  So it is something that is going to 
 
           11     happen, but what I am saying is the EPA, please, 
 
           12     take into consideration those individuals who 
 
           13     happen to suffer from asthma, those individuals 
 
           14     who have gotten older and can't stand a lot of 
 
           15     toxic, please consider them when you consider 
 
           16     some restrictions on the permit. 
 
           17                  Some questions I have are as 
 



           18     outlined:  A.  Will the proposed plant emit 462 
 
           19     tons of pollutants towards the city of Rockford? 
 
           20     This is not just for the west side of Rockford. 
 
           21     This is for the entire city of Rockford because 
 
           22     the wind blows east. 
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            1                  Will this plant use 1.3 to 1.8 
 
            2     million gallons of water per day?  And if that 
 
            3     is true, what impact is that going to have on 
 
            4     the water supply for this area in terms of 
 
            5     quality water which you normal sell industry on? 
 
            6                  The City of Chicago as well as 
 
            7     north side Crystal Lake are working right now to 
 
            8     look at and evaluate and pay consultants to 
 
            9     study the impact of water supply.  Don't let 
 
           10     nobody fool you.  There will be no water supply. 
 
           11     California is drying up.  Nevada is drying up. 
 
           12     All you have to do is face up to the fact it is 
 
           13     not by accident.  So I'm here to raise those 
 
           14     questions. 
 
           15                  Will the plant use more than 475 to 
 
           16     657 million gallons of water per year?  Just 
 
           17     raised that question. 
 
           18                  Will a large water consumption 
 
           19     impact the Rockford wells?  We have wells within 
 
           20     a mile and a half, three or four of them.  We 



 
           21     will have wells closed down in Rockford.  And I 
 
           22     am not implying nor am I suggesting that it has 
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            1     anything to do with anything on the drawing 
 
            2     board.  But I am here to tell you that water is 
 
            3     a demand.  And if you think the prices of 
 
            4     gasoline is important, wait until you find that 
 
            5     you can't get no water.  Not to put a damper on 
 
            6     anything.  Those are facts.  And that is what I 
 
            7     expect from the EPA organization. 
 
            8                  Will the plant discharge 46 to 100 
 
            9     million gallons of nontoxic treated water into 
 
           10     Kent Creek?  The city right now, along with the 
 
           11     county and the state, may consider if water 
 
           12     passes along Lovings Lake to the creek and 
 
           13     people now are swimming in Lovings Lake, what 
 
           14     will be the impact of that?  And who will we 
 
           15     look to when someone is impacted in a way that 
 
           16     they lose their life as a result of that? 
 
           17                  Will the plant subdivide the 
 
           18     additional 70 acres that they came in after they 
 
           19     asked for 50 acres?  That's the question that 
 
           20     EPA needs to know.  Because somebody said that 
 
           21     there might be -- and I don't want to quote any 
 
           22     numbers -- but a large number of trains that was 
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            1     going to be there, train cars that would be 
 
            2     located on the site.  And with that, they are 
 
            3     going to have to haul the waste throughout the 
 
            4     city of Rockford and Winnebago county and that's 
 
            5     a problem. 
 
            6                  What guarantee does the city have 
 
            7     regarding the subdividing of the land?  If you 
 
            8     start out with 50 acres, and then you need an 
 
            9     additional 40 acres or 70 acres, then what will 
 
           10     happen to that other land you have? 
 
           11                  Why does the company need unit 
 
           12     trains?  There's a lot of questions that goes 
 
           13     along with unit trains.  How many cars will the 
 
           14     company stack on the site?  Will the railroad 
 
           15     freight terminal explain -- will it be a 
 
           16     railroad freight terminal?  I would like an 
 
           17     answer to that. 
 
           18                  What other zoning can be permitted 
 
           19     in heavy industry?  I spoke of that earlier. 
 
           20     Heavy industry is not granted that often.  Heavy 
 
           21     industry is something that if a business chose 
 
           22     to, they could market that industry heavy 
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            1     industry.  Most cities will not give you heavy 
 
            2     industry.  So there's a lot of unanswered 
 
            3     questions. 
 
            4                  And how deep will the company dig 
 
            5     the well?  14, 15, 30 feet, I don't know.  How 
 
            6     will it impact the shallow well is what I have 
 
            7     been told is that the wells that are going to be 
 
            8     drilled for the ethanol will be going below the 
 
            9     normal aquifer.  If you are going to go below 
 
           10     the normal aquifer and you begin to deal with 
 
           11     that water which is not treated could have germs 
 
           12     in it and so forth, bacteria, and then you bring 
 
           13     your drills out of that back into the clean 
 
           14     water aquifer, what is going to happen to the 
 
           15     clean aquifer?  What assurance do we have about 
 
           16     that? 
 
           17                  I'm going to close down rather 
 
           18     quickly.  I introduced a resolution to the city 
 
           19     council regarding ensuring that certain 
 
           20     restrictions be met if they are in consideration 
 
           21     for additional zoning. 
 
           22                  I also introduced a resolution to 
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            1     the city council that Rockford is considering 
 



            2     expanding our boundaries west in probably 2030, 
 
            3     2040, but it needs to do that if Rockford is 
 
            4     going to be a major city. 
 
            5                  And the other thing I have is I 
 
            6     have some communications from our zoning 
 
            7     planning officer, and I'm going to leave this 
 
            8     with you also.  It tells the county of Winnebago 
 
            9     the responsibilities that they have to ensure 
 
           10     that Rockford and its citizens are not impacted 
 
           11     in a negative way.  And I do want to say to the 
 
           12     business people at Wight that is investing in 
 
           13     this, I'm not an individual that knock 
 
           14     businesses.  I don't do that.  I raise my 
 
           15     questions and I would expect those businesses to 
 
           16     answer those questions and I certainly don't 
 
           17     have a problem with that.  Business people are 
 
           18     in the business to make money.  Business people 
 
           19     have stockholders that they answer to.  And 
 
           20     business people has to make those happen or the 
 
           21     business people are not in business. 
 
           22                  As an elected official 35 years, I 
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            1     have done what I could do as an individual to 
 
            2     ensure that property rights are protected and 
 
            3     human rights are protected and whatever steps 
 
            4     that we can do to protect our environment we 



 
            5     need to be doing.  I want to thank you for this 
 
            6     opportunity. 
 
            7              MS. MYERS-WILKINS:  Delores Delaney. 
 
            8              MS. DELANEY:  Good evening everybody. 
 
            9                  I'm wondering since we don't all 
 
           10     have sewers, would it be drawing a lot of flies 
 
           11     and the ammonia, I can't use ammonia in my house 
 
           12     because of my throat.  Would there be a lot of 
 
           13     saturation in the soil all the time? 
 
           14              MR. ROMAINE:  The experience we have 
 
           15     with ethanol plants is they do not attract 
 
           16     flies, they are maintained not to attract 
 
           17     insects. 
 
           18              MS. DELANEY:  But we don't have sewers, 
 
           19     not all of us do not have sewers, we have a 
 
           20     septic system. 
 
           21              MR. ROMAINE:  Those circumstances 
 
           22     should be unchanged. 
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            1                  In terms of ammonia use, does Wight 
 
            2     Lightning want to make any comment on that topic 
 
            3     to explain how the ammonia is being used at the 
 
            4     plant? 
 
            5              MR. POTAS:  Thank you, director 
 
            6     Romaine. 
 



            7                  The ammonia solution will be used 
 
            8     for pH adjustment prior to fermentation.  So the 
 
            9     water solution of ammonia will be introduced to 
 
           10     the water solution that is the fermentation.  So 
 
           11     it's quickly in the solution as part of the 
 
           12     process.  So hopefully that explains how the 
 
           13     ammonia will be used and it's a fairly simple 
 
           14     process step.  Thank you. 
 
           15              MS. MYERS-WILKINS:  Maurice Redd. 
 
           16              MR. REDD:  Hello.  My name is Maurice 
 
           17     Redd.  I work for an organization called SWIFTT, 
 
           18     which stands for Southwest Ideas for Today and 
 
           19     Tomorrow.  SWIFTT is a 20-year old community 
 
           20     organization working with residents to help 
 
           21     improve the south and west side town of 
 
           22     Rockford. 
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            1                  After speaking with residents about 
 
            2     this issue over the last few months, there have 
 
            3     been a lot of concerns and issues that have been 
 
            4     brought forward.  I just wanted to express some 
 
            5     of those issues here tonight and maybe see if 
 
            6     they could be questioned.  Again, as Alderman 
 
            7     had mentioned about the questions and trying to 
 
            8     see if those answers can be given about some of 
 
            9     these issues. 



 
           10                  One thing I think that has not been 
 
           11     brought up this is a citywide issue.  I think 
 
           12     it's been portrayed as just a west side issue, 
 
           13     but I think it affects the whole city in terms 
 
           14     of how it will affect a lot of issues that are 
 
           15     going on and the resources that will be used for 
 
           16     this project. 
 
           17                  Unfortunately, the west side of 
 
           18     Rockford, south side of Rockford, have been 
 
           19     neglected in a lot of ways over the last 10, 20, 
 
           20     30 plus years and so now we are starting to see 
 
           21     some signs of things happening but we fear that 
 
           22     this development may actually hinder some of 
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            1     those long-term projects and plans that have 
 
            2     been made for the south and west side of town. 
 
            3                  I, physically, you know, have been 
 
            4     doing some research.  And a lot of people were 
 
            5     wondering why our group is fighting this issue. 
 
            6     You know, ethanol plants across the midwest are 
 
            7     many groups and many people in the midwest are 
 
            8     fighting this issue and are opposed to these 
 
            9     plants or after the plants have come things have 
 
           10     not been happening as they were proposed to be 
 
           11     happening in terms of issue of water, issues of 
 



           12     pollution, air quality, things of that nature. 
 
           13     Use of the roads.  And wondering why and how 
 
           14     that is happening in this process. 
 
           15                  Also looking over the Internet and 
 
           16     doing some research, I saw the EPA also is 
 
           17     planning to change some of the rules and relax 
 
           18     some of the rules that will require for new 
 
           19     ethanol plants in production.  So some official 
 
           20     can talk about that in terms of how those new 
 
           21     rules may affect how plants -- the production of 
 
           22     plants they would be doing. 
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            1                  And I ran across this in the 
 
            2     Chicago Tribune.  Said that right now they are 
 
            3     allowed to have no more than 100 tons of toxic 
 
            4     chemicals per year and that could be actually 
 
            5     going up to 250, and I want to just get some 
 
            6     comments about that. 
 
            7                  Also, there is an issue in terms of 
 
            8     the placement of this plant.  Obviously not some 
 
            9     of the officials here, but some of the other 
 
           10     officials in the city, in the county area, as to 
 
           11     why the placement of the plant in the place it 
 
           12     is right now. 
 
           13                  So I think if this has been 
 
           14     proposed in other parts of town, it probably not 



 
           15     would have made it to this process this far.  So 
 
           16     wanted to get some answers to those issues.  So 
 
           17     I just wanted to bring that up and hopefully get 
 
           18     comments maybe from some of the officials here 
 
           19     about some of these issues and see if we can 
 
           20     maybe ask some more information being given out 
 
           21     to the public about what are going to be the 
 
           22     affects of some of these issues and how can we 
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            1     get more answers about that? 
 
            2              MR. ROMAINE:  I'd like to respond to 
 
            3     the question concerning USEPA's proposed change 
 
            4     of the regulations.  This is something that the 
 
            5     federal USEPA is doing, not the state Illinois 
 
            6     EPA.  The USEPA's changes are not yet in effect 
 
            7     and they won't go into effect for 60 days.  So 
 
            8     that's the first piece of information. 
 
            9                  Second of all, Wight Lightning has 
 
           10     not submitted any revisions to the application 
 
           11     that would rely on these proposed changes to 
 
           12     alter its plans.  Based on the information we 
 
           13     have before us, the plans are unchanged. 
 
           14                  And then finally, the effect of 
 
           15     this rulemaking is perhaps overstated.  There 
 
           16     are other constraints on the operation of an 
 



           17     ethanol plant that mean that it's very unlikely 
 
           18     that new ethanol plants will be developed to 
 
           19     take advantage of the new 250-ton threshold to 
 
           20     avoid being a major source. 
 
           21                  One of the thresholds of the other 
 
           22     regulations acts to restrict emissions of 
 
 
 
                    KATHLEEN W. BONO,  CSR 630-834-7779 
 
 
 
                                                                33 
 
            1     hazardous air pollutants.  These regulations 
 
            2     treat a source as major, so it may be subject to 
 
            3     regulation if it emits more than 10 tons of any 
 
            4     individual hazardous air pollutant, or more than 
 
            5     25 tons of hazardous air pollutant in total. 
 
            6     The plant can't increase its emission of all 
 
            7     organic material, for them to go above 100 ton, 
 
            8     without that also affecting emissions of 
 
            9     hazardous air pollutants (HAPs).  So that's 
 
           10     another key constraint on proposed ethanol 
 
           11     plants like this proposal. 
 
           12                  A more complicated component of the 
 
           13     applicable regulations is that they actually 
 
           14     separately address combinations of boilers.  And 
 
           15     this plant would be subject to a restriction 
 
           16     because it qualifies potentially as having a 
 
           17     large amount of boiler capacity.  To avoid being 
 
           18     a major source, it has to keep the emission 
 
           19     associated with that boiler capacity also below 



 
           20     100 tons. 
 
           21                  And then perhaps a third constraint 
 
           22     is the nature of the subsequent permitting for 
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            1     the facility.  If the facility were to be 
 
            2     permitted as a major source, it would have to 
 
            3     get a Clean Air Act Permit Program permit, which 
 
            4     in some regards is more -- involves more 
 
            5     detailed administrative requirements than the 
 
            6     federally enforced state operating permit that 
 
            7     the facility would otherwise have to get.  So 
 
            8     basically the requirements would be the same, 
 
            9     but there would be more of dotting i's, crossing 
 
           10     t's.  It would be a more complicated permitting 
 
           11     program than would be applicable if they 
 
           12     maintain status as a minor source below 100 tons 
 
           13     per year. 
 
           14                  I think the question was also 
 
           15     raised about siting of plants.  And I hate to 
 
           16     tell you this, but the siting of proposed 
 
           17     industrial facilities like this facility is not 
 
           18     something that the Illinois EPA is responsible 
 
           19     for.  The judgment of state government, your 
 
           20     local officials, your representatives and 
 
           21     senators is that issues about zoning are best 
 



           22     left to the local governmental authorities.  So 
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            1     for zoning issues you need to talk to the local 
 
            2     government. 
 
            3                  Our role is to make sure that the 
 
            4     project that is developed complies with 
 
            5     environmental regulations, and those regulations 
 
            6     apply wherever a project is located.  In terms 
 
            7     of air quality, our goal is to protect -- our 
 
            8     function, our job, is to protect ambient air 
 
            9     quality and ambient air quality starts at the 
 
           10     fence line of an industrial facility. 
 
           11                  So the only place where we don't 
 
           12     protect ambient air quality, or air quality, is 
 
           13     on the plant's property itself.  The plant's 
 
           14     property itself that's the role of the 
 
           15     occupational safety and health administration, 
 
           16     OSHA.  That's a workplace exposure issue. 
 
           17                  Once you are off the property, 
 
           18     however, that's ambient air and it's our job to 
 
           19     make sure that that ambient air is protected. 
 
           20     We do have monitors in Rockford.  They are 
 
           21     located in downtown Rockford.  We site monitors 
 
           22     in areas that have the highest exposure and the 
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            1     highest level of pollutants in the air and the 
 
            2     monitors in downtown Rockford, based on our best 
 
            3     evaluation data, show that the air quality 
 
            4     Rockford is attaining is meeting the air quality 
 
            5     standard the USEPA has established to protect 
 
            6     the public and the state what is acceptable air 
 
            7     quality. 
 
            8              MS. MYERS-WILKINS:  Dan Butler. 
 
            9              MR. BUTLER:  My name is Dan Butler. 
 
           10     I'm with Ruekert-Mielke engineers, consulting 
 
           11     firm in Waukesha, Wisconsin.  I'd like to 
 
           12     address some of Alderman Bell's questions 
 
           13     regarding the water supply. 
 
           14                  The actual usage of the plant will 
 
           15     be between 760,000 to 1.2 million gallons per 
 
           16     day.  A study under a previous consultant showed 
 
           17     that a well or wells that produce that amount 
 
           18     that were finished in the shallow aquifer could 
 
           19     potentially have some impact on surrounding 
 
           20     neighboring shallow wells with the existing 
 
           21     private wells out there. 
 
           22                  For that reason, the proposed well 
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            1     for the plant is to go to a deeper aquifer and 
 
            2     it's going to be cased and grouted through a 
 
            3     confining unit which prevents largely the water 
 
            4     from above that confining unit to get below it. 
 
            5     The water quality result will be very good. 
 
            6     There aren't too many wells here that are 
 
            7     finished in the Ironton-Galesville aquifers, 
 
            8     which is the one that we are going to be 
 
            9     finishing this well in.  The village of 
 
           10     Winnebago, which regulates each one of those, 
 
           11     has received information on the water quality 
 
           12     and emission and it's just fine. 
 
           13                  So I guess I hope that that answers 
 
           14     the question that Alderman Bell had and I would 
 
           15     be open to any more. 
 
           16              MS. MYERS-WILKINS:  Dennis Harezlak. 
 
           17              MR. HAREZLAK:  Good evening.  My name 
 
           18     is Dennis Harezlak, H-a-r-e-z-l-a-k.  I'm the 
 
           19     superintendent of Winnebago Community Unit 
 
           20     School District 323. 
 
           21                  The issues of air quality and water 
 
           22     resources have been extensively debated 
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            1     regarding the Wight Lightning permit so, 
 
            2     therefore, I'm going to actually stay away from 
 
            3     those. 



 
            4                  I'm going to submit the majority of 
 
            5     my comment in writing.  And part of that is 
 
            6     because I attended other hearings and they went 
 
            7     quite late, so I thought it would be better to 
 
            8     do it that way. 
 
            9                  I will address my comment 
 
           10     specifically to the impact on the school 
 
           11     district.  When earlier speakers talked about 
 
           12     the project being in or on the west side of 
 
           13     Rockford, it's really the west side of Rockford 
 
           14     but the east side of the village of Winnebago. 
 
           15     It's in the Winnebago school district.  And I 
 
           16     currently live and have been a livelong resident 
 
           17     of Rockford and, like I say, do want to 
 
           18     specifically address my comment to the school 
 
           19     district. 
 
           20                  The effect on the school district 
 
           21     really comes primarily from the affect on 
 
           22     property and taxes.  The majority of how school 
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            1     districts operate in Illinois is property taxes. 
 
            2     The school district, and as superintendent, I 
 
            3     wholeheartedly encourage, and our school 
 
            4     district and our board has encouraged commercial 
 
            5     development as part of our strategic planning. 
 



            6     We have gone out to increase commercial 
 
            7     development and what is the impact of this 
 
            8     project. 
 
            9                  It will have a significant positive 
 
           10     impact on the district because it will allow us 
 
           11     to actually provide more of a quality education 
 
           12     for our students.  We currently if you look at 
 
           13     our expenses today and our projected ones as of 
 
           14     this afternoon, our projected budget for this 
 
           15     year is just under $16 million but the expenses 
 
           16     are a little more than our income for this 
 
           17     particular year. 
 
           18                  At the same time, this commercial 
 
           19     development such as the ethanol plant, while it 
 
           20     helps to increase the property taxes that we 
 
           21     will bring in, it will help to reduce the burden 
 
           22     on the local homeowner. 
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            1                  So the rest of my comments will 
 
            2     actually be submitted in writing.  But one 
 
            3     question I do have for the IEPA is if the EPA 
 
            4     was to turn down this permit, how and why would 
 
            5     other permits that are similar permits be 
 
            6     approved? 
 
            7                  That's the question that's been 
 
            8     asked of me as superintendent and my board has 



 
            9     asked, saying that the EPA has overseen ethanol 
 
           10     plants, continues to do that, continues to work 
 
           11     with the restrictions of air quality and the 
 
           12     amount of water resources and so we firmly 
 
           13     believe that if other projects are being 
 
           14     approved, this one should also be approved. 
 
           15     Thank you. 
 
           16              MS. MYERS-WILKINS:  Dorothy 
 
           17     Redd. 
 
           18              MS. REDD:  I'm going to submit my 
 
           19     questions in writing. 
 
           20              MS. MYERS-WILKINS:  Willie Bell. 
 
           21              MR. BELL:  My questions have already 
 
           22     been answered. 
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            1              MS. MYERS-WILKINS:  Okay.  Thank you. 
 
            2                  Earl Williams. 
 
            3              MR. WILLIAMS:  My name is Earl 
 
            4     Williams.  I'm a farmer in Cherry Valley 
 
            5     township, plus I also serve as president of the 
 
            6     Winnebago County Farm Bureau. 
 
            7                  I'm speaking in support of this 
 
            8     proposed ethanol plant.  From a farmer and from 
 
            9     an agricultural perspective, we think it will 
 
           10     add great benefit to the economic wellbeing of 
 



           11     agriculture in Winnebago county and northern 
 
           12     Illinois. 
 
           13                  One of the simple environmental 
 
           14     benefit we see coming from this one is that the 
 
           15     more ethanol that's used, the fewer fossil fuels 
 
           16     that have to be used.  Corn recycles carbon 
 
           17     dioxide out of the atmosphere as opposed to 
 
           18     fossil fuels which bring more carbon into the 
 
           19     atmosphere, so there's environmental benefit for 
 
           20     anything that we can do to increase the use of 
 
           21     renewable fuels. 
 
           22                  Also, the economic benefit for this 
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            1     makes farming more viable and it will hopefully 
 
            2     reduce the urban sprawl that sometimes occurs 
 
            3     with all the environmental costs of having 
 
            4     people having to travel farther, longer 
 
            5     distances. 
 
            6                  Our office is going to be the 
 
            7     closest neighbor to the ethanol plant.  We are 
 
            8     approximately an eighth of a mile from the 
 
            9     boundary of the plant.  We also as farm bureaus 
 
           10     have a network of other farm bureaus throughout 
 
           11     the state, some of which are located in places 
 
           12     where there are already existing ethanol plants 
 
           13     and the feedback we get from visiting with our 



 
           14     cohorts are that ethanol plants are welcome 
 
           15     additions to those neighborhoods.  Not only do 
 
           16     the farm bureaus in some locations say there's 
 
           17     no problems or issues that show up, but also 
 
           18     that the economic benefits of the additional 
 
           19     employment is welcomed in a lot of the 
 
           20     communities. 
 
           21                  So for these reasons, the farmers 
 
           22     and Farm Bureau of Winnebago County stand in 
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            1     support of the ethanol plant.  Thank you. 
 
            2              MS. MYERS-WILKINS:  Thank you. 
 
            3                  Bessie Alberty. 
 
            4              MS. ALBERTY:  My name is Bessie 
 
            5     Alberty, A-l-b-e-r-t-y, and I represent the 
 
            6     Parker Woods Homeowners' Association.  Parker 
 
            7     Woods is a subdivision which is less than five 
 
            8     miles from the proposed site. 
 
            9                  It is our understanding that the 
 
           10     guidelines for an ethanol plant normally 
 
           11     restricted to areas that are not so close to 
 
           12     residential areas.  The negative impact of the 
 
           13     ethanol plant on our area would be the smell. 
 
           14     Ethanol smells.  Some plants smell more than 
 
           15     others.  Some plants hardly at all.  But there 
 



           16     is a smell.  The smell actually makes a 
 
           17     difference. 
 
           18                  We had the opportunity to go 
 
           19     through a landfill that was directly across the 
 
           20     street from the proposed site and the smell from 
 
           21     that landfill was enough that you couldn't stay 
 
           22     outside on a summer night.  You couldn't sit on 
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            1     your patio, and you couldn't enjoy any of the 
 
            2     benefits of being in your own front or back 
 
            3     yards. 
 
            4                  As far as the air is concerned, I'm 
 
            5     not understanding the fact that the controls or 
 
            6     the regulators for the standards that you have 
 
            7     in place will actually control emissions into 
 
            8     the air.  I understand that that's what they are 
 
            9     designed to do, but in case of a mechanical or 
 
           10     an engineering failure, those emissions are in 
 
           11     the air and so there is no control and so, 
 
           12     unfortunately in southwest Rockford, there are a 
 
           13     number of low income and elderly people.  That's 
 
           14     just the makeup of that part of town. 
 
           15                  In case of a failure or a spill, 
 
           16     like we recently had in the sewers, these people 
 
           17     are not so quickly evacuated.  They are not so 
 
           18     quickly transported, if you will.  That would be 



 
           19     another concern. 
 
           20                  Every homeowner in the Parker Woods 
 
           21     area and the surrounding areas have well water. 
 
           22     I have been in that subdivision for over 
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            1     33 years.  We have never had a problem with our 
 
            2     well water.  I do know that the aquifers 
 
            3     referred to frequently flow from and into each 
 
            4     other. 
 
            5                  That would be my question to the 
 
            6     EPA.  Whether or not the plant drills below my 
 
            7     aquifer or above my aquifer really doesn't 
 
            8     matter.  Because if it drills below, my water 
 
            9     table drops.  If it drills above, then whatever 
 
           10     they are doing impacts my well. 
 
           11                  As far as I think it was 
 
           12     Ms. Delaney's question on soil saturation, the 
 
           13     way the ammonia is diluted and I can put Windex 
 
           14     in water and it's diluted.  That has to go 
 
           15     somewhere.  Where is it going?  Do we have 
 
           16     guarantee that that will not seep into our soil 
 
           17     and our sewers for the ones who don't have the 
 
           18     city sewers? 
 
           19                  Also in Parker Woods is a lot of 
 
           20     life sanctuary.  I would want to know, and the 
 



           21     residents of Park Woods would want to know, how 
 
           22     does that affect our wildlife?  Obviously humans 
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            1     can tolerate a lot more as far as emissions, 
 
            2     soil contamination, water contamination that our 
 
            3     wild life can't.  Since there is a wildlife 
 
            4     sanctuary inside that five-mile area, we want to 
 
            5     know the impact. 
 
            6                  As far as the other locations in 
 
            7     the county, I am sure there are areas inside our 
 
            8     county not so close to a residential area where 
 
            9     this plant would probably be a big bonus to our 
 
           10     community, but as far as the people who live and 
 
           11     work and enjoy being in the country, it's not 
 
           12     going to be an asset to us.  Thank you. 
 
           13              MS. MYERS-WILKINS:  Thank you. 
 
           14                  Pat Wilkins. 
 
           15              MS. WILKINS:  Pat Wilkins, 
 
           16     W-i-l-k-i-n-s.  And I would like to know will 
 
           17     there be toxic wastewater polluting Lovings Lake 
 
           18     killing fish?  Will it go into Kent Creek?  Will 
 
           19     it go into the Rock River?  And what else will 
 
           20     it kill? 
 
           21                  There is a drainage problem in 
 
           22     southwest Rockford and also in my backyard. 
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            1     When Lovings Lake -- when there's a storm and 
 
            2     Lovings Lake overflows, it comes down into 
 
            3     Garden Hills and in our backyard those fish are 
 
            4     back there in this little ditch and of course as 
 
            5     soon as the water goes down, then they die.  We 
 
            6     have our gardens and things there and so with 
 
            7     that water is it odorous and how will it affect 
 
            8     us? 
 
            9                  What provisions have they made for 
 
           10     this drainage that has been a long-term problem 
 
           11     in southwest Rockford?  Also, if this water is 
 
           12     draining and it's all kind of ways that that 
 
           13     water is draining all into southwest Rockford, 
 
           14     which affects the park that they have, it will 
 
           15     affect all Meridian going down Kent Creek, all 
 
           16     of those things.  We have Kingdom College, 
 
           17     Booker Washington.  When it flows into the Rock 
 
           18     River, then will the Rock River be contaminated 
 
           19     also?  Those are my questions. 
 
           20                  Also, for breathing.  How and what 
 
           21     have they provided so that it will not affect 
 
           22     our breathing?  And if it do, what liability do 
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            1     you have to cure us, if we alive, so that you 
 
            2     can do that? 
 
            3              MR. PATEL:  There will be a stormwater 
 
            4     retention basin to collect rainwater and prevent 
 
            5     stormwater runoff from the plant.  The plant is 
 
            6     designed so that process wastewater will not be 
 
            7     discharged from the plant.  The wastewater from 
 
            8     the scrubbers that control emissions is returned 
 
            9     back to the front of the process where it's 
 
           10     being reused.  So there won't be any wastewater 
 
           11     discharge into the creeks or the river.  And 
 
           12     that's process wastewater discharge.  There will 
 
           13     be some discharge from the cooling water tower 
 
           14     to the creek. 
 
           15              MR. ROMAINE:  Due to those control 
 
           16     techniques, the plant will not pose a risk to 
 
           17     public health based on the information that we 
 
           18     have before us.  Ethanol plants are routinely 
 
           19     operating in a number of communities and have 
 
           20     not been found to pose a significant impact to 
 
           21     public health because of emissions. 
 
           22                  Does Wight Lightning want to say 
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            1     anything more on the issues with regard to water 
 
            2     drainage and flow of cooling tower blow down? 



 
            3              MR. POTAS:  Thank you.  Couple of 
 
            4     clarifying comments regarding stormwater 
 
            5     control. 
 
            6                  The facility has been required to 
 
            7     submit a stormwater drainage plan for both the 
 
            8     construction and the operation of the facility. 
 
            9     Or I should say it will be required to submit 
 
           10     one for the operation of the facility. 
 
           11                  All stormwater runoff will be 
 
           12     directed towards a stormwater containment pond, 
 
           13     which should serve to improve the drainage of 
 
           14     stormwater in the area above the plant site and 
 
           15     around the plant.  There is no affect on any 
 
           16     neighboring lakes. 
 
           17                  A clarifying point on the question 
 
           18     on ammonia.  The ammonia tank is a contained 
 
           19     tank that has a secondary containment around 
 
           20     that tank and the volume of the secondary 
 
           21     containment is larger than the tank itself. 
 
           22     It's 110 percent of that tank. 
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            1                  So even if the entire content of 
 
            2     the tank spilled, which is extremely unlikely, 
 
            3     that would all be contained and collected and 
 
            4     that water and ammonia would be reused in the 
 



            5     process because it has value.  So from a 
 
            6     containment standpoint, the ammonia remains in 
 
            7     an enclosed system. 
 
            8              MS. MYERS-WILKINS:  Are there any more 
 
            9     comments written, oral, otherwise? 
 
           10              MR. BREWIGTON:  My name is David 
 
           11     B-r-e-w-i-g-t-o-n.  I live in Garden Hills 
 
           12     subdivision. 
 
           13                  I came in late so I don't know if 
 
           14     this question was posed, but I am here about the 
 
           15     pollutants in the air and the water and has 
 
           16     there been any long-term studies?  I'm raising 
 
           17     children and a family.  So has there been any 
 
           18     long-term studies 5, 10, 15, 20 years? 
 
           19                  How will this affect property value 
 
           20     with the smells coming from the plant?  Will it 
 
           21     lower my property values?  Those are the 
 
           22     questions I have for the plant. 
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            1              MR. SHANKLIN:  My name is Gerald 
 
            2     Shanklin, S-h-a-n-k-l-i-n.  This plant even if 
 
            3     you got to answer some questions but you are not 
 
            4     really, no matter how you look at it, it's going 
 
            5     to affect the ecological citizen, affect the 
 
            6     environment.  If it's going to put out any 
 
            7     emissions, it's going to affect how we live. 



 
            8     It's going to affect it. 
 
            9                  To me, if it can be built in 
 
           10     another place, that would be the most suitable 
 
           11     thing.  But to me I'm thinking right now the 
 
           12     reason why you guys are really building it where 
 
           13     they building it at, there has to be some kind 
 
           14     of deal coming in.  I mean the west side for 
 
           15     years -- I'm from Florida.  I have been here for 
 
           16     the last 30 years.  And when I got here, the 
 
           17     west side was so messed up and now here it is 
 
           18     now just now coming along.  It's a nice place to 
 
           19     go there before the development of the new 
 
           20     neighborhood and stuff but I do believe it's 
 
           21     going to have a bad effect on it. 
 
           22                  And I'm concerned about my property 
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            1     value as well as any other property owners here 
 
            2     and I think maybe if it can be moved some other 
 
            3     place, that's the best alternative for 
 
            4     everybody.  That's my comment. 
 
            5              MS. HUGHES:  My name is Sidella Hughes. 
 
            6     And Sidella is S-i-d-e-l-l-a, Hughes is 
 
            7     H-u-g-h-e-s. 
 
            8                  My concern is when the young man at 
 
            9     the end spoke, I had no idea what he was saying. 
 



           10     And I think that many people didn't.  And I 
 
           11     think a lot of things that you said to us we 
 
           12     aren't quite clear on.  I don't know if we can 
 
           13     get a copy of the transcript so we can ask the 
 
           14     questions more effectively and also know what 
 
           15     you are trying to answer. 
 
           16                  I think this was a great idea to 
 
           17     have a public hearing but because of the nature 
 
           18     of this public hearing and most people in here 
 
           19     are not engineers and we don't know the terms. 
 
           20     I would like to get copies of the transcript so 
 
           21     that I could do some research and be able to 
 
           22     answer your question must more effective. 
 
 
 
                    KATHLEEN W. BONO,  CSR 630-834-7779 
 
 
 
                                                                53 
 
            1                  I don't think I have expertise just 
 
            2     listening to you to be able to respond to what 
 
            3     you are talking about.  So that's my question 
 
            4     before I sit down.  Will we be able to get a 
 
            5     copy of the transcript? 
 
            6              MR. ROMAINE:  A copy of the transcript 
 
            7     will be made available on our Internet site as 
 
            8     soon as it becomes available. 
 
            9              MS. MYERS-WILKINS:  Any other comments? 
 
           10                  (No response.) 
 
           11                  Again, all comments, oral and 
 
           12     otherwise, that have been submitted today, will 



 
           13     be considered and will be responded to in the 
 
           14     Responsiveness Summary. 
 
           15                  I want to remind everyone that 
 
           16     May 31, 2007 is the deadline date for submitting 
 
           17     additional comments if you do have additional 
 
           18     comments that you would like to submit to be 
 
           19     included in the Responsiveness Summary. 
 
           20                  Again, copies of all the exhibits 
 
           21     are available upon request.  You can get them 
 
           22     from the Web site additionally.  Requests for 
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            1     extensions must be received prior to the close 
 
            2     of comment period in order to be considered. 
 
            3                  And with that said, this adjourns 
 
            4     this public hearing this evening.  Thank you for 
 
            5     your participation and your cooperation.  The 
 
            6     time is now 8:32. 
 
            7                       (WHICH, were all of the 
 
            8                        proceedings had, evidence 
 
            9                        offered or received in the 
 
           10                        above entitled cause.) 
 
           11 
 
           12 
 
           13 
 
           14 
 



           15 
 
           16 
 
           17 
 
           18 
 
           19 
 
           20 
 
           21 
 
           22 
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            1     STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
                                    )  ss: 
            2     COUNTY OF DU PAGE ) 
 
            3                   I, KATHLEEN BONO, Certified 
 
            4     Shorthand Reporter, Notary Public in and for the 
 
            5     County DuPage, State of Illinois, do hereby 
 
            6     certify that the testimony given by said 
 
            7     witnesses was reduced to writing by means of 
 
            8     shorthand and thereafter transcribed into 
 
            9     typewritten form; and that the foregoing is a 
 
           10     true, correct and complete transcript of my 
 
           11     shorthand notes so taken aforesaid. 
 
           12                   IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF I have 
 
           13     hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial 
 
           14     seal this _____ day of May, A.D. 2007. 
 
           15 
 
           16 
 
           17                            _________________________ 
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